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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SERWE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results
The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2024 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 180.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

CHAN Sai-ming (FE#4MER)

CHAO Yu-hang Christopher (#43%18)

CHEUNG Wing-han (3R5E{E)

LAU Kwok-fan (%I E1%))

LEUNG Kin-man (2EX)

MA Erica Yun (F5ER)

MAK Tak-wai (Z£fE(E)

NG Chi-keung (fA&34)

SIN Chiu-shun Charleston (tiB%#)

TSOI Tsz-shan (Z21EHH)

YEUNG Chuen-sing (122 &%)

PANG Yat-bond Derrick (&—%#5)

KONG Jianping (FL&I)

CHAN Hiu-fung Nicholas (BRPEI£) (appointed on 1 April 2024)
TSANG On-yip (B Z22) (appointed on 1 April 2024)
WONG Kin-hang (Z#18) (appointed on 1 April 2024)
CHAN Ka-yin Karen (FRE &) (resigned on 31 March 2024)
SIN Hendrick (J5#38) (resigned on 31 March 2024)

Cheryl CHOW Ho-kiu (87 5) (alternate Director to MAK Tak-wai,
appointed on 15 May 2023)

Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan (&78%8) (alternate Director to MAK Tak-wai,
resigned on 15 May 2023)
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Directors (continued)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association in connection
with the retirement of Directors by rotation, all existing Directors continue in
office for the following year.

The persons who were Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

LAU Yip-man (2|2 ) (appointed on 10 October 2023)
CHENG Chung-ngam (BB#2:5) (appointed on 3 April 2024)
LEE Kok-ming (ZE#4) (resigned on 23 July 2023)

YAN King-shun ({£515) (resigned on 31 March 2024)

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company'’s Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company or any of the Company’s holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Hong Kong, Cyberport, the
facilities management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SERWE

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the Directors of the Company was in force. The Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect
of any legal actions against its Directors arising out of corporate activities.

Events after the reporting period
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHAN Sai-ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 September 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
ERYIBEEEIERIRAR

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 108 to 180, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the report of the
Directors, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
VR ER S Gk

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 September 2024
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AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RBESHR O MBRR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

rEEmR reaczEmimEx
Year ended 31 March 2024 £ £ 2024FE3831 HIEFE

Year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024FE 3831 HIEFE

2024 \

2024
HK$ HK$
BT b
REVENUE A 4 538,027,221 412,042,881 LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRETHE (190,673,802) (246,552,505)
Other net income EAW A H3E 4 70,403,437 78,479,710
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hitt2mesHE
608,430,658 490,522,591
Other comprehensive loss that will not be REEHABAGENMSEEERZ
lassified t fit or | i b t jods: = 538
EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES %+ A EaENSH R reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods HEmEE
- Changes in fair value of equity investments —EERANEESAEMEERGEZ
EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION pd B
ok designated at fair value through other BB E 2 AR BEEH
Building management expenses YESELH (190,827,781)  (183,727,919) comprehensive income (52,952,199)  (139,838,708)
Staff costs BT A 5 (117,494,220) (101,608,732)
Government rent and rates A8 R Z= 80 10 17,282,163 15,204,906
: ( ) ( ) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR, FRHEMPEEE (NRKRIE)
Other operating expenses Hh&&E T H (120,251,276) (87,291,175) NET OF TAX (52,952,199) (139,838.708)
Finance costs PHEER 7 (142,257) (47,963)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRAEHEEIREEE (243,626,001) (386,391,213)
(445,997,697) (387,880,695)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION KT ARER BT HRINE
ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION ZIEEmF 162,432,961 102,641,896
Public mission activities expenses, net NREEEHELZH 11 (174,797,680) (186,655,669)
OPERATING LOSS BEFORE DEPRECIATION FReHFEREEESIE (12,364,719) (84,013,773)
Depreciation e (178,309,083) (162,538,732)
LOSS BEFORE TAX E3en) ot ] b (190,673,802) (246,552,505)
Income tax PSR 12 - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRETIE (190,673,802) (246,552,505)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
rRE MR

As at 31 March 2024 7220243831 H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
rRE MR

As at 31 March 2024 7220243831 H

2024 2024

HK$ HK$

BT b
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Property, plant and equipment W~ S ERE 14 5,250,272,836  3,225,323,252 Interest-bearing borrowing FEMBEE 23 1,263,000,000 -
Right-of-use assets FERREE 15(a) 8,696,953 1,190,514 Development maintenance fund BREEBES 24 370,232,570 371,802,919
Deferred rental receivables IREREWAE S 4,243,654 6,525,764 Other payables HihpERRIE 21 9,031,857 -
Cyberport Macro Fund investments HISBREREESRE 16 78,188,704 125,852,290 Lease liabilities HEas 15(b) 5,958,950 -
Prepayments and deposits FANRIEREE 19 2,758,292 2,432,671

Total non-current liabilities JEREN B R4AEE 1,648,223,377 371,802,919
Total non-current assets JETEE EEEE 5,344,160,439  3,361,324,491
Net assets BESRE 4,116,061,482 3,344,117,134

CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories =zE8 466,319 376,004 EQUITY i
Trade receivables J/EE,\L&EE%")\—' 18 44,636,496 27,999,345 Share Capital HQZ’K 25 1|998|000|002 984,000,002
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEIRIE -~ B REMEKRRIE 19 29,957,635 31,192,691 Reserves s 2,118,061,480  2.360,117,132
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries GG EY I EYNGE ] 29(b) 991,869 201,442
| t tsi iti B S E 17 581,518,836 653,239,404
nvestments in securities BRI Total equity tE=4aza 4,116,061,482 3,344,117,134
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEMEER 20 1,233,480,151 326,394,805
Total current assets RENE ELEEE 1,891,051,306  1,039,403,691
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEam
Trade payables FE(TBRTR 321,409,611 72,459,276 CHAN Sai-ming CHEUNG Wing-han
Other payables and accruals HihpE(dRIaREstE R 21 778,562,627 252,792,148 FR4MEA IREEM
Rental and other deposits HekHEMEE 22 113,688,803 103,973,471 Director Director
Amount due to the immediate holding company S BERERABRIE 29(b) 254,303,568 254,303,568 EE EE0
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(b) 2,962,277 1,279,666
Total current liabilities RENE ELEEE 1,470,926,886 684,808,129
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 420,124,420 354,595,562
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEETERRHAR 5,764,284,859  3,715,920,053
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243831 HIEFE

At 1 April 2022 202254818
Loss for the year FREE
Other comprehensive loss for FEREMEEEAS
the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity — IR AABESA
investments designated Hi2 ARG 2 KA
at fair value through other BEZANBEEEE

comprehensive income, net of tax (NB&1R1E)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FRZEEEEZE

Subtotal NG

Issue of shares BITR

Transfer of fair value reserve upon BARBEREEREM
the deregistration of an equity PEMEZEHRE
investment at fair value through REZRAEEED
other comprehensive income

Transfer from development REBEEESEEE

maintenance fund to capital reserve  BAE#E

At 31 March 2023 and at 1 April 2023 14202338318 %

2023%4H1H
Loss for the year FREE
Other comprehensive loss for FEREMEEEAS

the year:

- Changes in fair value of equity —IEERAABERA
investments designated Hi2 ARG 2 KA
at fair value through other BEZ ANEEEE
comprehensive income, net of tax (NpR1R1E)

Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FRZEEEEZE

Subtotal NG
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538,000,002  5,386,040,004 127,990,407  (2,774,925554)  3,277,104,859

- - - (246,552,505) (246,552,505

- - (139,838,708) - (139,838,708)

- - (139,838,708)  (246,552,505)  (386,391,213)

538,000,002  5,386,040,004 (11,848,301)  (3,021,478,059)  2,890,713,646

25 446,000,000 - - - 446,000,000
- - 9,053,449 (9,083,449) -

24 - 7,403,488 - - 7,403,488
984,000,002  5,393,443,492* (2.794,852)* (3,030,531,508)*  3,344,117,134

- - - (190,673802)  (190,673,802)

- - (52,952,199) - (52,952,199)

- - (52,952,199)  (190,673,802)  (243,626,001)

984,000,002 5,393 443,492 (55,747,051)  (3,221,205,310)  3,100,491,133

*

*

Issue of shares

Transfer from development

maintenance fund to capital reserve

At 31 March 2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BITRM
HEREEESERE
e

12024538318

25

A4S
ITerE

0 LIES

Year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024FE 3831 HIEFE

1,014,000,000

1,570,349

N\

1,014,000,000

1,570,349

1,998,000,002

5,395,013,841*

(55,747,051)* (3,221,205,310)*

4,116,001,482

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,118,061,480 (2023: HK$2,360,117,132) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

ZEHEREBEGEMBARNR 2R EH2,118,061,480787T (20234 © 2,360,117,13277T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREME

Year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243831 HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Realisation of government grants

Interest income from financial assets at
amortised cost, net of amortisation of premium

Interest income from investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value losses on debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss, net

Net realised/unrealised (gain)/losses on
investments at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income on bank deposits
Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of other receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net

Finance costs

Revaluation gains on investments

Decrease in deferred rental receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries

Increase in trade payables
Increase in other payables and accruals

Increase in rental and other deposits

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Interest on lease liabilities

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

114 Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

LEEH2RERE

PRI ARS8

R
W~ BB RRETE
EREEERE
BB 2R

BRHERAT R SREE
ISC oINS §ichi+ =]
BARBEFAREZ
BREFIBUA
BAnBESTABREZES
RARABEBEFE
BAnBESFABEZRE
BER I RER (Wm)
EIRFER
RITERFSUA
FEWARRR < BB
HthEGRIERE
BREYE  HBRRHFEEE
Z 1R FEE
MBER
BRASEGHRE

EEESE SR
7 E
FEMAR AR 0

FANRE ~ B2k EAt
PRSI R D

FEUR R 2 I BB A B RUR
(1)

FEATBRRRIZ N

HthE IR R Est B A1

1 R B @ S 14N

REmE /(PR 2RE
HEEEFMNE

REEEFAE (FRA) 2
REREFH

o~ o0 &~ &~

2024
HK$

(190,673,802)

175,949,998
2,359,085
(40,320,531)

(17,575,484)

2,683,632

(9,522,651)

(40,010,442)
4,752,226
6,163,267

344,999
142,257
(482,616)

(246,552,505)

160,371,162
2,167,570
(83,160,826)

(316,887)

(15,680,489)

3,589,500

8,041,445
(6,930,337)
2,000,117

27,037
47,963
(844,686)

(106,190,062)

(177,240,936)

2,282,110 3,928,144
(90,315) (204,516)
(21,389,377) (11,255,818)
3,192,544 21,935,167
(790,427) 1,737,467
248,950,335 26,927,302
37,002,313 28,528,527
9,715,332 9,686,177
172,682,453 (95,958,486)
(142,257) (47,963)
172,540,196 (96,006,449)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment
Increase in Cyberport Macro Fund investments

Increase in investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from sale and redemption of held for
maturity investments

Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Interest income received from:
- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Investments at fair value through profit or loss
- Bank deposits

Increase in time deposits with original maturity of
more than three months

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government grants received

Principal portion of lease payments
Proceeds from issue of shares

New other loans

Interest on other borrowing

Net cash flows from financing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERETRER
Year ended 31 March 2024 #;Z2024F3H831 HIEEE

BREEHZRERE
BAMZE - BB RRHFEEREE
YIEBRERIEESRERM
BAnBESABREZ
RAEEM
HERBEORERIRRE
FRISMIR
HERBRIZARBE A
B 2 KEFTSTRIA
HERBEEARBESAR
e EE 2 REPRISMIA
BRI BIA
— BB AR TREE
—BRARBESABRRZKE
—IRITER

REHBES=EAULZEH
RGN

RAZHMARENEFER

MBEBZRETRE
EWRBFEEE
BEMNMRZ AEED
BTRMPAISIIA
IR HMERR
HMEEHNS

MEEMFRSREREFER

2024
HK$

(2,171,269,958)
(7,972,245)

(288,122,544)

369,848,379

17,647,963
31,491,587

(185,308,525)

(442,775,055)
(12,227,990)

(252,247,504)

49,384,925

234,507,136

14,531,824

316,887
15,273,105
6,056,002

(43,346,604)

(2,233,685,343)

(430,527,274)

27(b) 524,859,054 71,501,310
27(b) (2,223,963) (2,254,797)
1,014,000,000 446,000,000
1,263,000,000 -
(16,713,123) -
2,782,921,968 515,246,513
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FERERER

DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2024 8;ZE2024FE3831 HIEEE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
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Notes HK$ HK$

B BT BT

721,776,821 (11,287,210)

258,115,337 269,402,547

979,892,158 258,115,337

20 1,233,480,151 326,394,805

20 (253,587,993)

(68,279,468)

979,892,158

258,115,337

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote the
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through the creation
of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the
digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the
“Vision"), the public mission of the Company is anchored in three strategic
directions:

Talent Cultivation and Development;

= Industry Development; and

= Integration of New and Traditional economies.

In the Group's relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes a
pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To ensure
the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the needs of
budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and industry
talents, the Company actively builds strong partnerships with leaders from
technology industry, academia, research institutes and professional bodies.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund (the "CMF")
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of
HK$200 million, the CMF aims to provide Cyberport’s start-ups with early
financing and promote the development of venture capital ecosystem in
Hong Kong. In April 2021, Cyberport had committed to inject an additional
amount of HK$200 million into the CMF and extend the scope to cover
Series B and later-stage investments. Further details of the investments
made up to the end of the reporting period are included in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has established various teams (“Public Mission Teams") to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Public Mission
Teams that contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Cyberport
Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary Incorporated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MR EE

31 March 2024 202493831 H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. RFEEH @)
Information about subsidiaries BB ATNER
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: KRB ZHBABFIBUWT :

Percentage of equity

Place of Issued ordinary attributable to Principal
incorporation share capital the Company activities
SR IMEE BRTEERA RABIREEREB L FEER
Direct Indirect
=k ik

Cyberport Macro Fund Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 = Investment holding
BE 17875 BEZER

CMF One Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
N 1877 BEER

CMF Two Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
) 17873 BEZER

CMF Three Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
G 1873 BEER

CMF Four Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
S 1870 BEZER

CMF Five Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
O 1873 BEER

CMF Six Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
B 187 BEER

CMF Seven Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
E 17875 BEZER

CMF Eight Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
B 1870 BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, debt investments at fair value through profit or loss and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income which
have been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M
31 March 2024 202493831 H
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related

assets [including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling interest

and exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any

investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or

loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other

comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,

as

appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had

directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for

120

the current year's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to

the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’'s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material
accounting policy information in note 2 to the financial statements.
The amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group's financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group's approach and policy
align with the amendments, the amendments had no impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising from these transactions.
The amendments did not have any material impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes, including the
disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two income taxes separately
in the periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the
disclosure of known or reasonably estimable information of their
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation
is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group
has applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the Group did not
fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments
did not have any impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI ERERMIEE

31 March 2024 202493831 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs, that have been
issued but are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 March
2024, in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Group
considers that these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

122

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, debt investments at fair value through profit or loss, and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2024 202493831 H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

124

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and
that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Buildings Over the period of the lease

Building services and support facilities 10%

Information technology facilities 20%

Centres equipment 20% - 33'/.%
Leasehold improvements 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income ("ocl1"), it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or (oss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity investments
are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset
host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with
the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates, if and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade
and other payables, and borrowings]

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a
maturity of generally within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

134

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

Revenue from food and beverages

Revenue from the sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point in
time when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer, generally
upon consumption of the food and beverage items by the customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water
charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee, tenant
bus ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point in time when
the customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the
services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Revenue from the car park fee is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the
income is entitled and services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs reviews for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers “Buildings held for
rental”, “Hotel building” and “Building services and support facilities” as
a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which the
portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed by
independent professional valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in
the property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at the
end of the reporting period, with reference to current market sales prices
and the appropriate capitalisation rate.

Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

2.4 EXEHHE @

MR B
ZEFREYBRRUXRBZNELGEEBTE
P AEEFE TEBREATRAEHAS ZIES
B> MEBRASHMBREANZRERAZIE
EWEE - AEFEE T EREEZINERZT
HAEERERRZ HRERANZNEEKER
ik o DUNSEHEZ EREELBBRNERE
HIRBREZEEKERINE - HHENIHEGE
BEEEZZRINBEAEL o RINEELM
K BZIIFERAEERBINS RS B2 ERR
=

AR LR RRNRERRZIFEREENIFE
BaEZEMEE  FHXRAMES » REEY
THRBZEXRE > P57 AR ERNT R
RENAEBREEZFEREESFERKERE
B - A ZERNMARIUR > FEERSE
BRNAEZNRIWR D BEERZ BE

EXGEHEE

MRRAEBGRSMBRER > BEBAFHE
EFFERBBA S X  BEERAGRTRKLEBEH
ZRE > LIRS ABEREZ ) E - G5 KRR
& - ARRKRREFTABETHEEN - BJEERH
BARRFEZ EENAERMEFHERRE

st FRERR

EEAN T AMBEEEELAGERIEED
ERARZEARARZ BRBABEEZRRKRINER
SHREME S A EE M RIRRBBUT o

FERMEBEEZRIE
SEHRBTREEZREERERRB ZEMHHE
MEMER > AEEBGHFERMEENEBEETS
B o

FEBGRNZEFEES TEERENR > W
FREEEER MERRR—MRHR - 7EEF
TREHBET ) ~ DEEET ) & M FRB R
R R —EEEES @ WEASRWAREE
REREBENRSERUEXGEMZGE > EE
ZEERCBZRTELEN - MEMLERR
BZRBRRURSHRREFEZDRABKE > L2E
ERHERRERGEEARCLER -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Based on the Group's best estimates, provision for impairment loss on the
non-financial assets is not necessary.

Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has the
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value
through profit or loss if the investments are managed by external fund
managers and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the investments is provided internally on that basis to
the Group's key management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to
keep these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances
for example, selling financial assets with an insignificant amount close
to maturity, it will be required to reclassify the entire class as debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not at amortised
cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.
Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the financial services, media and retail sectors, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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3.

140

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)

Fair value of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

The unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments have
been valued based on the recent market transaction prices, market-
based valuation techniques and expected cash flows discounted at current
rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics. The
valuations require the Group to make estimates about expected future
cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select the price multiple or
enterprise value multiple. Hence, they are subject to uncertainty. The fair
values of the unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments
at 31 March 2024 were HK$78,188,704 (2023: HK$119,976,069) and HK$Nil
(2023: HK$5,876,221), respectively. Further details are included in notes 16
and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from change or
improvements in the provision of services, or from a change in the market
demand for the service output of the asset, the expected usage of the
asset, the expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. An adjustment of
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different from previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period based on changes in circumstances.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate ("IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as the Group that does not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the Group's
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the Company's stand-alone credit
rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

BEREeHEE (@

A BERR (&)
HESREREESRE ANEBE
FELETRARERIE EHEFRERBILHATIS
FLAZE ~ UThiB AR EGERID RIZBERR A
BUE R R B R4S A IE B 2 IR1TFIZEAGIR > A
RERBETHEE - MEREAEEHEHAR
HEME  GERR BB KAIRRETHST
I E A LB AR A Bl R B fE g b 2
HEHEE > AMEABTEEM o 1202483431
B ELEHRABRERFELHEBREZANE
B35 778,188,704 77T (20234F © 119,976,069
70) REBHETT (20234 : 5,876,221387T) © E—H
HBEHEN RS M ERRMEE16K31 ©

ME - WERRFERBZIEAFHRTRER
REEYME W hRBEBZ D ERFHER
HEER  AEERTEZREE 0 SEMREMHR
PR e E S B E R E 2 T IE R RES)
el mEER - EEFRPRAR - RRERE
- BEMEREUNEERRZARIALIR
# - BEFERFRZEFNRESEERBE
ROZEUEEZEERIEY o MY% - HERR
BEBZ (et A ERERK / REFEEE IR
FRIfhEr  RIFFHITERE - RERSHR > &
SEREBEBEREH N EAFRRIFERET
5t o

’

HE — EEHER EER=
FEBBELIRSEERERMBESHFE  Hlt
EREREEMNX (TEEEEMNE)) St28HE
BE - EREEMNRSAEBNBALIEERIES
ABSRERREEEEBLZEE - MUEM
B REARCURBEAMBESE N ZFR -
EIE - EREEEFRRIR T A EE TS T 597
o BEOTREAFIRE (FI903 50 I 5T R
BEXRGZAEEAMES) NEEHFIFETHEL
[ PRFAE 2 AR B A 4 By (a0 SR B W IF DA
EEBTHAEERSETILR) » RIAFRFIRME - &
HRGAMEIRE  AEEEHATEHREA
#HiE (FIHHFR) MEIEREERE - WA
HETFBEREEZG (BINARATANEILEER
AR o

ESEIRIE

RSERRIAE E S BJ BEF FE SRR a1l ) A i H 8 S
BZBRNE KRB ARIEEGE T S - EiE
B 7R R HR AR SR A ER AR i F) P AE 3R 2 B ) e 7K <7
EERRIRF AR RIS (EHEAHE - LIEER
TR ZIEEIRBREESER °
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31 March 2024 202443831 H

REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Income from hotel operation

Building management income

- Management fee income

- Other facilities income

Revenue from other sources

Rental income

Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate

Other lease payments, including fixed payments

Car park fee income

Type of services
Income from hotel operation
- Room income
- Food and beverage income
Building management income
- Management fee income

- Other facilities income

Total revenue from contracts with customers

EREAIRA
BIEEE A
MEBBERA

— EEEA
— EAhERpEA

HthFRZ WA
GEEALON

4. WRAREAUTA R
WAZAHMT :

2024
HK$

W AREURIS IR MR E R

FIETEE A

HtWEEN > BEEEYR

P=ESS=CLON

(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from
contracts with customers

AR#5EE
BIEEEWA

—EZEREBA

— B@mREEHIA
MEEBWA

— EEBEWA

— EthRIEWA

=RGt

or

WA KB ER

115,427,203 42,538,055
91,993,997 93,953,219
42,984,190 33,707,828

250,405,390 170,199,102

3,440,212 3,286,963

269,695,308 225,120,185

273,135,520 228,407,148
14,486,311 13,436,631

287,621,831 241,843,779

538,027,221 412,042,881

() BERAHNBAZIBRBRAER

2024
HK$

63,111,481 11,360,098
52,315,722 31,177,957
91,993,997 93,953,219
42,984,190 33,707,828
250,405,390 170,199,102
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued) 4.

(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from
contracts with customers (continued)

Geographical markets IS

Hong Kong E

Timing of revenue recognition U A BT B R

Services transferred at a point in time RE—ERFEEE 2 RS
Services transferred over time PERF R85 2 ARTS

Total revenue from contracts with customers ~ HARASKRALEEE

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in
contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Income from hotel operation TEIEEEWA

(b) Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is summarised
below:

Income from hotel operation
The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services are
rendered.

Revenue from food and beverages
The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer obtains
control of the promised goods, being at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages at the restaurants. Payment of
the transaction is due immediately at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages.

Management fee income
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered.

Other facilities income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point in
time as services are rendered.
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YA B E U A8 (8)
(a) ERAHNBAZIEBRAETR (@)

2024
HK$

250,405,390 170,199,102

85,449,936 53,905,268
164,955,454 116,293,834

250,405,390 170,199,102

TREFIN RS HAPTESRS ARSI S
WEBEPZIRAEER

2024
HK$

B ARESIHTEHNERFZHEA

2,040,980 1,106,162

(b) BHEE
ERAEEBENEEZERBNT ¢

TS EEWA
B 40 B A 4R 11 AR S S A B P 75 T AR
7o

BRRIEIEA

BHOEERE R BIS A EE A fh 2 EF
(IEREREHERMAMAEE) BT - &
FHEBRMRRHFIIASNRS

BB
B 40 B A 1SR (L AR TS B B RS RO T T
R

Lo

B EEBERSEEB RN R HBHESE
GRS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)

(b) Performance obligations (continued) (b)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which
amounted to HK$3,576,470 as at 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$2,040,980)
are expected to be recognised within one year.

Other net income Htg A B8
Interest income from financial assets at
MppREFEHSET

(20234 : 91,9527T)

amortised cost, net of amortisation of
premium of HK$Nil (2023: HK$91,952)

AR E M BRI

31 March 2024 202443831 H

4. WWABREMB AR (8)

BHEE (@)
R2024%38318 > PEEEFGRENSE
(REBTHBAORERT) 2RZBIEA
3,576,470 7T (20234 © 2,040,980 7T) > 8
HARR —F R © .

2024
HK$

RIS AT IR SREEZ A B WA

Interest income from investments at fair value AR BESTABT ZEEFNBUWA

through profit or loss
SRITIERUR UL A
Services income from fellow subsidiaries (Note) F&MBAT ZARFSUA (FisE)

Interest income on bank deposits

Net realised/unrealised gain/(losses) on
KEBWE S (F518) $E8

investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Foreign exchange differences, net HMNEAEERFEE
Government subsidies on rental waiver Hefe 2 BUNEEEM
Others Hih

Note:

On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the
“Residential Portion") was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary Development) Limited
("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited
(the “immediate holding company”). Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October
2003 entered into between the Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services income of
HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from November 2003 for the provision
of services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee was
revised to HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006 and to HK$261,000 commencing from
May 2008. The total amount received during the year was HK$3,132,000 (2023: HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into between the Company
and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly services income was received for the
provision of information technology and telecommunications services to the Residential
Portion. The total amount received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2023: HK$1,069,654).

RARBESFABEZREBEER

= 316,887
17,575,484 15,680,489
40,010,442 6,930,337
4,201,654 4,201,654
9,522,651 (8,041,445)
(2,755,362) (3,680,335)
= 61,713,927
1,848,568 1,358,196
70,403,437 78,479,710

PifEE :

2000658240 » EBUBELRERBAR (TEEE

RAT]) BRAKBADESHES (MBERE) 5RAF
(THKCADL ) #t &AM SARE A3t Bk 8969 SRR R —ZpH +
i (MEEEH 1) © RIBAA T EHKCADLFRE] IZ H #2003
F£10825 B2 RHBERE > ZATREEHH 2 EERER
# > B20034 11 BFH1AE B AHKCADLUKER 125,600/ 702 B
ERRFEUA © H20064F 48 2008455 #E » ILTEUEH B
1E8T %% 5 200,00058 7T 5% 261,00058 7T ° AEEC KIS
3,132,000 7T (20234 : 3,132,000587T) °

RIEAATRBE R BAT Skillful LimitedFFsTII HEBA
2005438 128 2R HHE > AABRETHHIRUEA
MEREBARBME S BUIMBRBEA - KEEBWRES
1,069,654 7T (20234 : 1,069,654 7T) °©

BREH 2023/24 FEIR 143
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RE IR ARMIEE RE IR ARMIEE
31 March 2024 2024538318 31 March 2024 2024538318
5. STAFF COSTS 5. ETHZ% 7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MBER
An analysis of staff costs is as follows: BIMAZDHIT : o
\% 2024
2024 HK$
HK$ BT
BT
Interest on other borrowings HMEEFE 29,974,623 -
Salaries and allowances i< Be R B 161,719,506 144,199,228 Less: Interest capitalised B EREFE (29,974,623) -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIKEF SHEIERR 6,479,067 5,902,130
Staff benefits and other staff costs ET®RMMEME Taax 1,692,142 470,040 . )
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBEZME 142,257 47,963
169,890,715 150,571,398
142,257 47,963
Analysed into: DA
Hotel B 62,385,318 50,774,781 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EXilE
Corporate office NEIRERR 55,108,902 50,833,951 The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to RIBEA(ATERN F383(NER(AT HEE
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of ERHER) RO BB AN EBMESNE
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) m
117,494,220 101,608,732 Regulation are as follows:
Public Mission Teams (note 11) NEREeERB (MIEE11) 52,396,495 48,962,666 °
6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. FRIRAIASIR
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEEZ RIRATBERENR GtA) TIER
. Directors' fees BE0E = -
- \ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind fre BB R EYET = -
2024 \ Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL - -
HK$ Retirement scheme contributions R BN - -
AT
Rental income less outgoings of HK$16,525,762 B U AIOFRRIS: 16,525,762 70
(2023: HK$14,460,506) (20234 © 14,460,506787T) (256,609,757) (213,946,642)
Cost of inventories FaERE 20,505,702 15,339,074
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #]% - #8857 25 14 175,949,998 160,371,162
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 15(a) 2,359,085 2,167,570
Lease payments not included in TErAHEAGEFENHEENR
the measurement of lease liabilities 15(c) 490,940 580,298
Fair value losses on debt investments at fair BRAMBEES ABm 2 EBRE
value through profit or loss, net NABEEEFE 2,683,632 3,589,500
Auditor's remuneration ZBEMBN & 458,100 442,000
Impairment of trade receivables FEUAR R Z BB 18 4,752,226 2,000,117
Impairment of other receivables HthpE R IEZ BE 19 6,163,267 -
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and HEY¥ « EREREEE >
equipment, net 5187 58 344,999 27,037
Finance costs: MER
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZME 142,257 47,963
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31 March 2024 202453831 H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. ARREHES

Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid employees hEEEREHEEZMEFBOT
are as follows:

2024
HK$
BT
Salaries and allowances Frd R
(Including discretionary performance bonuses) (BIERIBEMIEAL) 15,891,582 16,528,125
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIREFE B 180,000 180,000
16,071,582 16,708,125
The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose BeNTEU THEE T FESESH ES AN
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: T

%

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001787c%2,500,00078 70 2 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001787C%3,000,00078 70 - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,00187c%3,500,0008 70 2 2
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 75%5,000,000 75 1 1
5 5
10. GOVERNMENT RENT AND RATES 10. ithiH R 2=l
An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: AR ERZ DRI -

2024

HK$

BT
Hotel EIE 756,400 744,400
Corporate office REVRERE 16,525,763 14,460,506
17,282,163 15,204,906
Public Mission Teams (note 11) NREEER (FisE11) 333,537 339,878
17,615,700 15,544,784
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AR E M BRI

31 March 2024 202443831 H

11. PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES EXPENSES, NET 11. AR EHEEFZH
All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant MAREAFTEENRLESHBRRMET PR
purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running MR IR ARE e EBFIELE 2B LA
of public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated BRHIIRRAAREHnEH L c ARAXEHE
financial statements are considered as public mission activities expenses. i

Such expenses comprise:

2024
HK$
T
Staff costs BT 52,396,495 48,962,666
Information technology facilities maintenance fees BRI EREER 23,640,814 25,279,253
Financial assistance to industry start-ups BEERTAIBERMEER 91,586,978 91,865,327
Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, TR (P& ~ 1E8l - EhEE -
competitions, workshops and exhibitions) T REE) 51,407,859 22,742,959
Government rent and rates A K 2= B 333,537 339,878
Public mission communications NREDIBEA 5,843,816 4,939,763
Operating expenses W 14,216,604 6,425,331
Government project expenses BEEZH 43,992,619 32,145,205
Recovery of direct expenses WEIE#ES T
(including government grants of (BB BN +98,864,266 7870
HK$98,864,266 (2023: HK$40,046,315)) (20234F : 40,046,31587T) ) (111,304,674) (49,634,213)
Fair value losses on debt investments at fair value QA ABEG ABEZEHRE
through profit or loss, net NABEFEE 2,683,632 3,589,500
174,797,680 186,655,669
12. INCOME TAX 12. FR1S#
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did S A R [ 7 L R B OB B AT I SRR
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year A B R E BN SR F R (20234 ¢
(2023: Nil), &) o
A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the BRREEBSEEMEHE ZHRAIERZRIA
Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group's effective tax BRRZEAEERRREFE 2RI HIRD
rate is as follows: I .

Loss before tax PRI RTRS 1R

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5% @& B EERE165%:1E 2 RERR

Income not subject to tax BEGFRRZ WA

Expenses not deductible for tax ENCIE L o

Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 RIBRSE

Tax amount at the Group’s effective tax rate BAEEERREAE 2N

L 4

2024
HK$
#BIT

(190,673,802) (246,552,505)

(31,461,177) (40,681,163)

(22,914,327) (17,933,946)
1,325 16,421

54,374,179 58,598,688
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

im e M PSRRI EE in e M SRR M EE
31 March 2024 2024538 31H 31 March 2024 2024538 31H
13. DEFERRED TAX 13. IBIEFRIE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% ~ BB R
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: FIERMBEEEREEZEEHNT : °
Buildings
Losses Depreciation services
EVENEL] in excess and support ~ Information
for offsetting of related Building Hotel facilities technology Leasehold  Furniture and
against future depreciation held for rental building ¥ facilities Centres  improvements equipment Motor  Construction
taxable profits allowance fifet il 1] EABE  equipment gz R vehicles  in progress
AR IrEEH A ¥ # RN B PR HR B 1] ERIR
RARFERR e Others HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS K K HKS
A Z BS54 2&E Hith #7 #7 A7 A7 #7 A #7
HK$ HK$ HK$ (note i)
#IT AT AT ; (st
At 1 April 2022 7202244818 (177,365,695) 177,371,868 (6,173) - Cost it
AT April 2022 R0nERIE 3HTIBM AN 136359338 28918791 60886204 235214680 25209482 70000 2453552 6208919929
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to &R BHE (5T A),/ Addition i - - e 7403488 - 18907386 16,840,106 - Q06654780 4427505
profit or loss during the year MBR 2 IEIEFR 1A (46,514,094) 47,056,088 (541,994) - Disposalwriten of e /i - - S Al ) - S Y] - - [16I3430)
At 31 March 2023 and 72202353 A31 B K At31 March 2023 202338318 3557123776 274931912 1405796165 17120325 60,886,256 404888506 248,032,373 0000 451,980,306  6,575,558,546
1 April 2023 2023%4R1H (223879.789) 224427956 (548.167) B Addition i - - nm 1,666,036 - 19,846,827 5,095569 - Q1333972 220104081
Disposalwriten off tHE /4 - - (4728547) (389.904) - (753,116  (19,113983) - - (31768550
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to ERK¥EHE GtA)
profit or loss during the year B Z IEFEFRTE (13,581,071) 14,365,189 (784,118) -
At31 March 2026 2038318 3597123706 274931912 1430169795 172479386 60,886,256  4IT199217 234,213,959 710,000  2597,314,218  8,745,034,577
At 31 March 2024 K2024F3831H (237,460,860) 238,793,145 (1,332,285) -
Depreciation and impairment HERAE
Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences arising B A 4 3 B T AE S 5 08 ok Bl FE R 0 33 M 4 TR A R At T April 2022 RonEB18 1380568216 107196012 120945457 213858522 0888296 107236199 18007487 710000 - 32597358
from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation of the RN @ > WARNEERIEBEFEBMTEE 2 ERE Depreciation charge for the year ~ EAFTERS 77162965 599533 2308030 3803858 - BT3B 2343547 - - 180371062
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31 March 2024, FERESRIRIEFRIAE & o R2024FE3831H » A& Disposlwritenof ue /i i . S i C i - b
the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$3,503,000,000 B> AR IERE443,503,000,0003 7T (2023
(2023: approximately HK$3,173,000,000). The tax losses have no expiry £ 1 #93,173,000,000387T) o MIBEIEI E2HA
date and are yet to be agreed by the Inland Revenue Department. H» BEFREERES o At 31 March 2023 RuEBA 1,663709,181 113,191,346 1,232,526,807 195,943,355 60,886,256 133,989,307 189,720,044 710,000 - 3,350,235,29
Depreciation change for the year ~ EAHTERS 71162965 599538 18214 ,56885% - BB 22193098 - - IT59499%
Disposalwritien off e /i - - (6728547) (389.904) - (7656598)  (18660502) - - [31enE)
At31 March 2026 H04E3A31 R 1560852166 119,106,680  1,255,318,681 159,742,307 60,886,256 164,882,833 193,262,840 710,000 - 3496,761,761
Net book value FEsE
At 31 March 2024 RuE3RsIA 20621630 155831232 174851114 1273101 - D33 L0%INg - LT3R 5021283%
At 31 March 2023 ROBEsRIE 209841659% 161786566 173270358 15,639,899 - 10819 583123 - 1980300 322530308
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31 March 2024 202493831 H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes:

150

0]

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph
Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company of the Company for a term of 50 years at
a lump sum initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3% of the
rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the "Cyberport Portion”) has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding

company at nil rental.

On 1 December 2022, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 9082 at
Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company of the Company for a term of 50
years at a lump sum initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3%

of the rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 9 December 2022, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 9082 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the “Cyberport Portion") has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding
company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and Technology Centre

funded by government grant and used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2024, the fair value of the buildings held for rental and the hotel building
amounted to HK$6,663 million (2023: HK$6,730 million) and HK$400 million (2023: HK$402
million), respectively. The aggregate carrying value of such assets amounted to HK$2,016
million (2023: HK$2,093 million) and HK$156 million (2023: HK$162 million), respectively.
The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated buildings
services and support facilities) and the hotel building as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 were
determined based on a valuation carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited,

an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated building services
and support facilities) and the hotel building falls within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
and is determined using the income capitalisation approach by discounting the expected

rental income using a capitalisation rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. LEASES 15.

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment,
information technology facilities, storage area and accommodation used
in its operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years,
while office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area
have lease terms of five years, and an accommodation has a lease term
of two years. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the

movements during the year are as follows:

e MRl R M
31 March 2024 202443831 H
HE
SEBEAZRBEA

FEEREEETERNPLEYE - PBAER
B BfAERE FEEREBIAHEES

Mo MRAEYMENBERRRE > MPLIER
B BEREREARFEFFENEERSLE - £
BRHERAME - 2EETAHEATEEH
SHEMRNBESH > HETXE—mit -

.

(a) fEREEE
REENEREEEZ REBERFENESHU

T —

Office Office

premises equipment Accommodation

MAEME YN £

HK$ HK$ HK$

AT BT #AIT
As at 1 April 2022 1202248 1H 2,719,726 161,759 476,599 3,358,084
Depreciation charge ERXZ (1,554,120) (136,851) (476,599) (2,167,570)

As at 31 March 2023 and 72023E3H31H K

as at 1 April 2023 2023F481H 1,165,606 24,908 - 1,190,514
Additions wE 9,352,940 512,584 - 9,865,524
Depreciation charge ERX (2,163,316) (195,769) - (2,359,085)
As at 31 March 2024 7202438 31H 8,355,230 341,723 - 8,696,953
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e EERRMIEE e BRI
31 March 2024 202453831 H 31 March 2024 202453831 B

15. LEASES (continued) 15. 88 ®) 15. LEASES (continued) 15. 8 ©®)

The Group as a lessee (continued) FEFEAEBA (@) The Group as a lessee (continued) SEBEAERBA (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) THEERE (d) Variable lease payments (d) CIEBEENR
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the HEaEZREBRENEFHUT : The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment that contains REBTTE—MHAERENHEESY  H

152

year are as follows:

variable payments based on the meter rate of additional printout. The
term is negotiated by management for the office equipment that is
used to print without steady usage. Management's objective is to align

FESREBERIMTEASEHRGTEAE
IR o ZAFFZ R E IR E 7 A (EFT ENE A &
BERENMAERBEHETE - EEEZEHN

2024 the lease expense with the additional printout. The following provides EFEEX HHAEIMTEISIEETE - TR
HK$ information on the Group's variable lease payments, including the HERMAERNSEENRZER » 818
s magnitude in relation to fixed payments: BRABEENRZIBE : o
2024
Carrying amount at 1 April K481 BZREE 1,279,666 3,534,463 et el
ixe ariable
Additions NE 9,865,524 - payments payments
i H i i Bl =3
Accretion of interest recognised during the year FERRERZF S IGIE 142,257 47,963 EEfd5h GE=EREN
Payments [BE (2,366,220) (2,302,760)
T T
Carrying amount at 31 March MR3E3THZEEE 8,921,227 1,279,666
Fixed rent EEAE 171,600 - 171,600
Analysed into: PaR i -
Current portion RENER D 2,962,277 1,279,666
2023
Non-current portion IERBNZ D 5,958,950 -
Fixed Variable
payments payments
8,921,227 1,279,666

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 32(a) to

HERBEZIMONEREMBREWE

BRI BEThE

HK$ HK$
BT BT

the consolidated financial statements. 32(a) NI EE ©
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (c) MIBFPmAEREIZSENT ! Fixed rent BlEMHE 104,000 - 104,000
follows: Variable rent only EX A EAs - 106,403 106,403
2024 104,000 106,403 210,403

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities (included in
other operating expenses)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss
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HK$
ABIT

HEEEMNR 142,257 47,963
EREEERERX 2,359,085 2,167,570

TEIAEaRSEZAIEEE
I GtARMEE )
490,940 580,298

PR PR BT R 2,992,282 2,795,831

(e)

In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a variable
lease payment term that is based on the Group's storage per carton
box in the warehouse. The amount of the variable lease payments
recognised in profit or loss for the current year for the lease is
HK$490,940 (2023: HK$473,895).

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 27(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

tbsh - AEEBER—EER  HANEER
BAEETERNSERAHTEMTEN
AIEAEMRNER HREAEFENHEER
Bm PR 2 IS E MR A490,9408 7T
(20234 : 473,895787T) ©

FENBRSRALEBERSMBERRME
27(b) NI EE ©
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31 March 2024 202443831 H

15.

154

LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 14) in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to
pay a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was HK$273,135,520 (2023: HK$228,407,148), details of which are
included in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —FR
After one year but within two years —FEBREMFAN
After two years but within three years MEBREB=FR
After three years but within four years =FBENFR
After four years but within five years MEBEBRAER
After five years AFE
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15. A8 (@)

FEEEAHBEA
FERRBEEHEZHHBSTEETET (I
H14) cFHERRTERBLAXZMRESR - H
ERRTERBRZARES - AEBENRER
R Z WA 273,135,520 7% (20234
228,407,148787T) » BRAFIBEN GRS MBS RERM
5E4 o

REREHAR > AEEREREE R 5T 897 7] HEs
RETEE R R AR E KB R ITRBE RN
s &

2024
HK$
BT

202,202,614 208,076,465

102,564,714 125,794,188
52,271,246 57,957,241
18,240,029 38,795,692
14,885,604 19,974,409

= 19,440,120

390,164,207 470,038,115

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. CYBERPORT MACRO FUND INVESTMENTS

Equity investments designated at fair value

AR E M BRI

31 March 2024 202443831 H

16. HIEBIREAERESRE

2024
HK$

IEERAMGEES ARt E K

through other comprehensive income 2RI E

- Unlisted equity investments, at fair value —JEEIRAKRE  BARNEE 78,188,704 119,976,069
Debt investments at fair value through BARBEAABRZEHRE

profit or loss

- Unlisted debt investments, at fair value —FLHEBRE  RANEE - 5,876,221

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did not recognise any
dividend income (2023: Nil) from the equity investments held at the end of
the reporting period.

The above debt investments were hybrid contracts consisting of a bond
and an embedded derivative. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based digital
entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HK$200 million, the CMF
aims to provide Cyberport's start-ups with early financing and promote
the development of venture capital ecosystem in Hong Kong. In April 2021,
Cyberport had committed to inject an additional amount of HK$200 million
into the CMF and extend the scope to cover Series B and later-stage
investments.

78,188,704 125,852,290

HRAEEIRZEREBREMUE > R LK
FREF AR MBEERAABES ARMEE

Wag e

BHE2024F 3831 HIEFE » ANEE W EAEDK
BREHARMFENRERE ZFARBE WA
(20234 : #E) ©

LREBRESARSRRARNTETEERZ
BREGH - ARGV BRRAANEBES AETE
ZEREE > REAEGNRENBUIFERX
R RFE o

BE—TIMAREBRHAERTAICEZAIES
& > AEER2017FAS BEIEAI 2 K EEN SIS
BEREAEES FIHER BRI XESVARRE
EAMBETT > SEABEEVAICERBERE
BT RESBNAREEELBRIBENERE - ¥
2021548 BIEBRZAREEREEES
REINEEMEATT > WIRAZBHKLBHANKRE -
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iR a MR AR ME irE MR ME

31 March 2024 202453831 H 31 March 2024 202443831 H
17. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 17. ;B H/E 18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FEYRERTR (&)
e The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables FEWARR Z BERS 1B EEBT ©
\ are as follows:
2024 o
HK$

2024

T
HK$
- BT
Current assets RENEE 7
Investments at fair value through profit or loss BARBEESABRZEE 581,518,836 653,239,404
At beginning of year F17 3,322,226 1,322,109
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) SRR ERE (FisEs) 4,752,226 2,000,117
Total “st 581,518,836 653,239,404
(a) Investments at fair value through profit or loss (a) MARBEAABEZRE At end of year R ChuE e 3,322,226
* An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a AEBNRESREEHERAREBEEEETHRED
2024 provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are o Ut ERMEEHE - BEXDLREARE
HK$ based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with LB (BB E - EREE - TR E
e similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer BRTRURERERAMEAZ EERREZE
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit EHE) 22 ERTFR DA ARXETE
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the Zet ERREER ISR - GERFEEEURR
Listed fixed interest debt securities: FHEEN B ERES time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that REBHAIESHERABETEMN - BRIKRERRE
- In Hong Kong — EEER 55,873,467 77.937.431 is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions KBERRBRAZSEBAIRER c —KRils > B
. i iti i BE Zr 40 0 iy — N an-2 > B
_ Outside Hong Kong _E A 445,471,312 548,350 666 and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables RNEBE—FARZRHATEE > BT
. are written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to DAiS o
Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt securities I B A REEEFN EEHHH 80,174,057 26,951,307 o
enforcement activity.
581,518,836 653,239,404 Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the DT #1575 el 2 52 [ {6 R 455 45 AE e 2 FEUR AR R 2.
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: EERRBER :
Zh
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. Bguﬁﬂﬁﬂ As at 31 March 2024 202453831 H [
o Past due
il ]
LLLS Less than  One to three Over three
BT Current one month months months
BN Li—{ER —E={@8 EiR=EA
Trade receivables FEUBRR 52,710,948 31,321,571
Impairment AiE (8,074,452) (3,322,226) Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEE 0% 5.48% 7.26% 38.25% 15.32%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) BREARE (B) 17,802,437 9,265,623 7,230,326 18,412,562 52,710,948
44,636,496 27,999,345 Expected credit losses (HK$) EHEEEE (55T - 507,352 524,821 7,062,279 8,074,452
The credit period given to customers is generally 0 to 30 days. The HTERZEEH—RAIEIK - AEEKE As at 31 March 2023 20234383180 °
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to BASIERIE R 2 FEWFRIBUEE B R E -
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior =  ARAFHEREREECHER -  ££H Past due
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit G fi i EL R U BR R4S B A A AR R el i T = v
enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are MIEERFHEN ° BUERFARE ©

. . Less than One to three Over three
non-interest-bearing.

Current one month months months

EP#A DR—ER —E=f@8H BiB=1Ea

Expected credit loss rate TEfAEERIEX 0% 11.07% 15.57% 16.86% 10.61%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) IRE4EE (Bio) 9,779,750 4,585,076 3,371,351 13,585,394 31,321,571
Expected credit losses (HK$) FEHRIE B8 (BT) - 507,352 524,821 2,290,053 3,322,226
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EERRMIEE
31 March 2024 202453831 H

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. TAIFRIE - B d R EH thEUEIE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI
31 March 2024 202443831 H

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. REZRIREEEHEH

2024
HK$
BT
Prepayments TR FRIE 11,685,626 10,816,918
Lease incentives HEEE 39,876 4,319,968
Deposits paid for premises leasing MMEREX N2 EE 325,620 -
Other deposits Hithigs 1,998,732 1,591,899
Other receivables HfthpE W FIE 33,326,858 25,394,095
47,376,712 42,122,880
Impairment BE (14,660,785) (8,497,518)
32,715,927 33,625,362
Analysed into: balilP= I
Non-current portion IERBNZ D 2,758,292 2,432,671
Current portion mEnER 29,957,635 31,192,691
32,715,927 33,625,362
Impairment of deposits and other receivables WEREMEWERIEY FHE

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated to
their fair value as at 31 March 2024 and 2023. Provision for impairment
on deposits and other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses. In assessing the expected credit loss of deposits
and other receivables, management considers various factors such as the
ageing of the balances, existence of disputes, recent historical payment
patterns, any other available information concerning the creditworthiness
of counterparties and forward-looking information. Management uses this
information to determine whether a provision for impairment is required
either for a specific counterparty or for certain counterparties’ balances
that have similar loss patterns overall. The provision for impairment
of other receivables at 31 March 2024 was HK$14,660,785 (2023:
HK$8,497,518).
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F22024F % 20233831 H » R EMEWR
HZREEREQAAEBERES - e REMEY
MEZRERER 2EREREEHER2HTE
=8B E 0 VI EERRBED REBIUE
BEAREINME © MEKRIEBZ EERKE
SRR A RGN > AR EZRERBEHEES
Bt 2 - RiTERESREMBWRIEZ FERiEE
BER SEBEEEEZERNE & NGRS
BEGEEMY BT AEN BRIGHA
19 1= 275 BA MY A 1 H Ath AT 15 55 R DU R Al BE 1
Mo BEEMNHEELENKAEREEBAR R
ERZHANERE FABELUEBERANETRS
2 EERER R ERE o 12024838318 >
HAEURERIE 2 R E B 5 214,660,785 8 7T (2023
£ 1 8497518587T) ©

2024
HK$
R

Cash and bank balances e RIRTHER 233,352,244 114,725,748
Non-pledged time deposit with an original maturity of RE/SRIBEA VR =ZEEZ

less than three months when acquired EIRIETEHRER 746,539,914 143,389,589
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of RESKRIBAA=ZERN L

more than three months when acquired EIRFEEFER 253,587,993 68,279,468

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between one month
and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

1,233,480,151 326,394,805

RITIRESRIEE B RITHERA T LT A R EREX
FE - EHERBFAEBZRAFREFRM
€ ERHRNF—EAE—EF%F > LUKE
ZEMERARERA R  RITEFRERER
FALRY EENTHREEERTFZIRTT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR a MR AR ME irE MR ME

31 March 2024 202443831 H 31 March 2024 202443831 H
21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. HfthFEIRIBR Bt ER 22. RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS 22. fiS R HthigE
_ — Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$47,035,170 (2023: EHEREOVEFRFIERN —FREMZRIE
~ HK$44,755,419) which are not expected to be settled within one year. 47,035,170 75 (20234F :© 44,755,41977T) ©
2024
HK$ 23. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING 23. St EEE
BT
Contract liabilities BHaR (a) 3,576,470 2,040,980 Effective
Other payables HAREAT IR (b) 10,500,861 193.436 interest
rate (%) Maturity
Accruals FESTE A 214,775,516 176,025,519
) BREAE
Receipt in advance FaEIE 15,874,314 16,203,413
(%) )] S
Government grants BT e 534,703,531 50,165,008
Provisions BiE 8,163,792 8,163,792

Other loan - unsecured HMEMR - J|IKHF 5.25 2026 1,263,000,000

787,594,484 252,792,148

Portion classified as current liabilities DEARESEENID (778,562,627)  (252,792,148)
Non-current portion JEmENEL D 9,031,857 -
Notes: B5E
Analysed into: DA
(a)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) BHEEFENT . ® Other borrowing repayable: HAhFE AL
2024 \ In the third year to fifth years, B=FERE (F)
HK$ inclusive 1,263,000,000
BT 1,263,000,000
Short-term advances received from customers B B 2 AT HE B h Note: Ff5E -
Income from hotel operation SBIESEWRA 3,576,470 2,040,980
(a)  As at 31 March 2024, the borrowing is denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. (@)  R20244E38318 - EELETEE o
The increase in contract liabilities in 2024 was mainly due to the increase in short-term R2024 FEAHNEBEENEEAR AT L W Z BEBHN A
advances received from customers at the end of the year. FERIBIMFTE © 24' DEVELOPMENT MAINTENANCE FUND 24' ﬁﬁﬁﬂggﬁ
It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the ZEECEAEERBEAAR » BEEERA
(b)  The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three months or (b) HifEdZEARE > FIHHARA=EA » E—FRE terms of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the B) ~ HKCADL ~ Eﬂ%ﬂ(ﬁ%iﬁj}ﬁﬁ&@ﬁ (ﬁ*ﬁ%%ﬂ
ble withi : & o . . ) . e
e = immediate holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks BRABRAR) REABBRATN20005F5817
Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17 HFEr2s] 2 85 B 5t 8linaE (Tot8liReR1) Z 1R
May 2000 (the "Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement, FREN 2 B £ - IRIEsTEI1H:% 0 ZBEESBER
the purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common BRIEEHBAERSEERZEASTN  EEX
telecommunications, media and information technology facilities available BRI R (TSRS B AR ©

to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport facilities").

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the REAEBZSEER > NEEHEBEELUES
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance hE > BEREBESEZRANEREECES (TR
Fund (the “DMF") account to the Capital Reserve account in accordance HEES)) RESEEENERERE ©

with the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$1,570,349 (2023: FER o EA1,570,349787T (20234 : 7,403,488
HK$7,403,488) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this B ZHEEBLEARNEREREECESES
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve account. WiIRHER o ALt » ZZREERBEEEEES

BRFEARHERS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR a MR AR ME irE MR ME

31 March 2024 202493831 H 31 March 2024 202453531 H
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. Bg7s 27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 27. 2 R&HERMEE
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEBIFRERS
2024 During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FR o AEEMPAEMEZBELZHER
HK$ of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$9,865,524 (2023: Nil) NERREEZFREAEREEEED 7
_ and HK$9,865,524 (2023: Nil), respectively, in respect of lease 759,865,524 71 (20234 | &) & 9,865,524
A7 arrangements for office premises. BT (2023F 1 F) o
lssued and fully paid: DR RER (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) METEFFESCEEESE
1,998,000,002 (2023: 984,000,002) ordinary shares 1,998,000,0020% (20234 : e
984,000,00208) iR 1,998,000,002 984,000,002 OVETAMmENE
grants included
in other
A summary of the movements in the Group's share capital is as follows: KEBRASHRIT ¢ e Interest-bearing payables and 1D
_ borrowing accruals liabilities
Numl::‘er of . ot AELfth FE{
: s .ares :n\rel MIER et &
L 1SSUE capita HEME  2BRERBS
ERITRMNHE
BT
At 1 April 2022 202254818 - 61,824,524 3,534,463
At 1 April 2022 720224818 538,000,002 538,000,002 Changes from financing cash flows RERETEEH - 71,501,310 (2,254,797)
New issues (Note) T (M5 446,000,000 446,000,000 Realisation of government grants B #Bh & 23R - (83,160,826) -
Interest expense FEZH - - 47,963
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 1202353831 H%2023F4H1H 984,000,002 984,000,002 Interest paid classified as operating DEACEHESREZENFIE
New issues (Note) #E1T (MPEE) 1,014,000,000  1,014,000,000 cash flows - - (47.963)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 1202353831 H &R 2023F 48 1H - 50,165,008 1,279,666
At 31 March 2024 R202453831H 1,998,000,002 1,998,000,002 B
Changes from financing cash flows RERSREEE) - 524,859,054 (2,223,963)
Note: On 15 June 2022, 446,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at HK$1 per share to the existing Mz : 1220226 B 15H > BER I BTHNEREAAARDREKERE Realisation of government grants USRS - (40320531) -
shareholders of the Company, which resulted in proceeds of HK$446,000,000. 17446,000,0008% EiEBAR - FEAFFTISTRIHL46,000,000 7T New leases mHaE - - 9,865,524
On 3 July 2023 and 15 January 2024, 714,000,000 and 300,000,000 of ordinary shares were #2023 7H3H K%2024F 18158 » DRZER 1 ETHE New other borrowing Rt ER 1263,000,000 N N
issued at HK$1 per share respectively, to the existing shareholders of the Company, which & mZAASIRA R ERE1T714,000,000 8 52 300,000,000 42 & i Interest expense FEZH - - 142,257
Ited in total ds of HK$1,014,000,000. AR > 18 FFISAIRARER1 014,000,000385T o N
resulied i fotat proceeds © e . Interest paid classified as operating PEAREREREZENFE
26. RESERVES 26. (& cash flows - - (142,257)
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the FEBRAFERBEIEEZRESHEREEH
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of IR EEREENE ° At 31 March 2024 12024435318 1.263,000,000 534,703,531 8,921,227
changes in equity.
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEZRERBARRE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated FALGERERERZAERE R BAETEAN
statement of cash flows is as follows: T & ~
2024
HK$
b
Within operating activities TEEEEA 633,197 654,261
Within financing activities EREEEFA 2,223,963 2,254,797
2,857,160 2,909,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EERRMIEE

31 March 2024 202443831 H

28. COMMITMENTS 28. I

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the REEPRMEARE U T EAEKIE o
reporting period.

2024
HK$
BT
Contracted, but not provided for in respect of: [SHESEES Y-
Property, plant and equipment I N BRI 207,881,750 330,563,164
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. B AR5
(a) The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR (@) ARFHEBREBREBMBERREZR

via The Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with
revised HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures issued by the HKICPA,
government-related entities and their subsidiaries, directly or
indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the Government of the HKSAR are defined as related parties of the
Group. On that basis, related parties include the immediate holding
company and its subsidiaries (other than the Company), government-
related entities and their subsidiaries, other entities and corporations
in which the Group is able to control or exercise significant influence
and key management personnel of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, approximately 5% (2023: 6%)
of the Group's revenue was rental income, building management
income and other facilities income derived from the Government of
the HKSAR. All these services are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy.

(b) The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow (b)
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(c) Details of the compensation of the key management personnel of the (c)

Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group are disclosed
in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRl R M
31 March 2024 202453831 H
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30. FEREI PSR IR

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at N EMTANRRSHARZEREENT :
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2024 20244 3H31H

Financial assets TREE —

[ ]

Financial assets
at fair value

through other

comprehensive
income Financial assets at fair value

BAREE through profit or loss
st ARMZE BARBERARTDZ
Wiz EMEE EHEE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated amortised cost
Equity as such Debt g i elw
investments MHIEES  investments 5liRZ
s Bl RS EHMEE
Deferred rental receivables IR S S = 3 4,243,654 4,243,654
Cyberport Macro Fund investments HIEEREERELRE 78,188,704 - - - 78,188,704
Investments in securities EHRE - 581,518,836 - - 581,518,836
Trade receivables FEUERTR - - - 44,636,496 44,636,496

Financial assets included in STATETIUE e REM
prepayments, deposits EWTIBZ SREE
and other receivables - - 20,990,425 20,990,425

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries BRI BABRZIE - - - 991,869 991,869

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEBEE - = - 1,233,480,151 1,233,480,151
78,188,704 581,518,836 - 1,304,342,595 1,964,050,135
Financial liabilities )= -—

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

FBSH R ASTIRR Z

AR

HK$

T

Trade payables FETBRIR 321,409,611
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 3t AEMENREREN SR SHEE 228,739,594
Rental and other deposits HeMEMEE 113,688,803
Amount due to the immediate holding company e BEEERATRIE 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HEAaR’ 8,921,277
Interest-bearing borrowing FEEE 1,263,000,000

2,190,062,803
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31 March 2024 202493831 H

30.

166

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

31 March 2023 20234£3H31H
Financial assets TREE

Financial assets
at fair value

through other

comprehensive
income
WARE[E  Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BAnBESAEGZSHEE

Mandatorily

designated
Equity as such Debt
investments REHEE A investments
RAKE Z485 BHRE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT
Deferred rental receivables BN S - - -
Cyberport Macro Fund investments HISERERIEEERE 119,976,069 - 5,876,221
Investments in securities EHRE - 653,239,404 -
Trade receivables TR - - -

Financial assets included in STATBRMER « BEREM
prepayments, deposits URIBZ SREE

and other receivables - - -
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  EWREZRMBAZTZE - - -
RekR&SEER - - -

Cash and cash equivalents

30. WERNBSWEMIA @

Financial
assets at
amortised cost

SR
1l v
sREE
HK$
B
6,525,764 6,525,764
- 125,852,290
- 653,239,404

27,999,345 27,999,345

18,488,476 18,488,476
201,442 201,442
326,394,805 326,394,805

119,976,069 653,239,404 5,876,221

379,609,832 1,158,701,526

Financial liabilities THEE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

T SH P AT IBR 2

TRIAE

HK$

BT

Trade payables FE(TERTR 72,459,276
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 3t AEMENZUEREER SHEE 192,436,064
Rental and other deposits HekEMGE 103,973,471
Amount due to the immediate holding company FENERERATRIE 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HEER 1,279,666
624,452,045
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to
fair values, are as follows:

AR E M BRI

31 March 2024 202443831 H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 31. ®fITEZAABERAAGBHEZLSLER

FEETHMITAZIREERANEE GREEH
ARBEGEEEZEMITERN WF :

P——

Carrying amounts Fair values

Financial assets ERMEE
Equity investments designated fEERADEET AEM
at fair value through other 2EWNEZ BAKRE
comprehensive income 78,188,704

RARBEEFABRZ
through profit or loss BE%ERE

Debt investments at fair value

Investments in securities BHRE 581,518,836

IRMEE AnEE

119,976,069 78,188,704 119,976,069

5,876,221 - 5,876,221
653,239,404 581,518,836 653,239,404

659,707,540

779,091,694 659,707,540 779,091,694

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental receivables,
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, balances with fellow
subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and rental and other
deposits approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following method and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value:

The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair values as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for lease liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 were assessed
to be insignificant.

FEBEFEELERBES « BUERR ~ 5tAR
MR BERAMBRRBEZCHMEE  Re
RREEFHEEE  ARRNBRADAKERERA
B2 AR ~ FEIRM © St AE Mt RRIBE R FE 5t
BRzzMaR  HekAMBEZ AR EER
HIREERE » T2ARZETENEIANEIE -

TREERSRABEZAABEURS S EE
(GRIBTER B ERIN) BT ZERIRZHRIRT
BENSEBEAR - FHAEARBRANRGTAAE
B

HEaGrARBEDERRRIENEEMUE
M EERR KR TEHN TR FIZE KB
KRB REN R E o AAREEAFH 2024
F£3831 B%202343831 HptfiEAERENT
BAERRMEENAMBEEEETEATERK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MR EE

31 March 2024 202493831 H

31.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of nine (2023: ten) unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023 have been estimated using the market-based valuation
technigue based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as
enterprise value to sales ("EV/S") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of
the comparable company by sales measure. The Directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuations carried out by an

N.EMIAZARBERAABEESR

(&

202443831 H 202343831 H » IR AR
BEFAREMEENREZ I8 (20234F | +18) 3F
THRAKREZ AREEERAUNIGAELEMY
BT RBELIFRHERmENERT R 2/
RETMEE o ETHER > EFRERERITE
IR  BERERERECATLERARRAA (A
¥) > TSR ERA TS ESENER
EE (BN EBEBE) o ZEEHRATLERA
BNEEBERUEESAEHFTMTE - EER
7 RNRERE BB F XL EMTE 2 A5t
AAEE GIARERHERRER) RAANEEZE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 March 2024 and 2023:

As at 31 March 2024

Valuation Significant

technique unobservable input

f&fES & EATAHRREARE

e Bl

31 March 2024 202493831 H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 31. 2 TEZAAEBHERAABHEZR

€=)

DUR A1 2024 52023E3 831 B/ T A
BZEARUERGASBEREERNCEHRE
PaXinie

22024E3831H -—

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEEHGABEZ HEE

independent professional valuer, which are recorded in the consolidated FMEH GtAREME2ERTG) BaE > UARSHE Unlisted equity Valuation EV/1-year Forward 2.53x to  When Multiple increases/decreases by
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair values, NEE - investments multiples Sales multiple of peers 6.65% 0.01, the fair value will be increased/
which are recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and (“Multiple”] decreased by HK$6,000 and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting HK$50,000
period. EEmRARE BN FEACREE IFER  253MEE  EREA S TR RERAMEESY
tHEREEE (TE80) 6.6515 Rk 6,0007 75 K2 50,000 7T
The fair values of two (2023: nine) unlisted equity investments designated 1202493831 HKR2023FE3H31H » I5ER AR EV/S multiple of 7% When Multiole i /d b
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2024 and BEFAEMEEWREZEZ — 18 (20234F : L1E) IF my |z Ii/OB 1'03X 0831 :1 I? (_a mclrease_su bec_reases ;//
31 March 2023 have been estimated using the recent market transaction EHRAKEZ AREEERBEENERRE peer_s an X ol hetairvatue with be increase
) N multiple of peers decreased by HK$38,000 and
prices. fEHfd5t PR
("Multiple”) HK$38,000
The fair values of one unlisted debt investment at fair value through R2023F3831H » BAAEBESAERZ—HE BIESE SEUACEONEES 17665 EHLEF TR0 ERARBEEE
profit or loss as at 31 March 2023 has been estimated using the market- FLHEHBREZAANBEEERATSGES TFEEE (ME380) 1.0315 ./ A.b38,00078 70 5 38,0007 70
based valuation technique based on assumptions that are not supported % RBUIFEPTBRRHERE R F 2 RRIE EV/S multiple of 1.64x to  When Multiple increases/decreases by
by observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors TihEt o BITHER > ESEERBTE R peers ("Multiple”) 4.88x 0.01 (2023: 0.01), the fair value will be
to determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, B B RRIBRBEN LEBRARAT (FZ) » (2023: increased/decreased by HK$13,000
size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, T EEEHAN AT LERABFE & EEREEH 1.33x to and HK$215,000 (2023: HK$Nil and
such as EV/S multiple, for each comparable company identified. The (FIINEEBERBE) c EHRA 0 RERSHRRAE 7.95x) HK$213,000), respectively
Directors believe that the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation BB EEGHEMTGHZ Gt AREBE GTALR EERE Tttt 16LEE  EREF S TH0.01 (20234 : 0.01) &
carried out by an independent professional valuer, which is recorded EUBRRR) RAABEZEREE (Gt ALK (TfE84)) 4881 SREE A S EEE I H/ 13,0005
in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related SEER) BB TAERESBEZEE R » (20234 - ST 215,000 7T (20236  SHETR
changes in fair value, which are recorded in the consolidated statement HARERNENPBEHAENYBEERAABES 1335 213.0003E7T)
of profit or loss, is reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate AHMEEBGH2ERE > AREBENA3208H 7.952)
L t th d of th ti iod. During th iod, the rel t 7t o A8 m SR E5182,683,63278 7T © : . '
Ya ues at the end o Pf _repor e perlo S e e ere ev§n 78 © [ i e Discount for lack of 11.40% to  When discount increases/decreases by
investment was reclassified to a fair value through other comprehensive o ) )
) ] ) ) ) o marketability 33.0% 0.01 (2023: 0.01), the fair value will
income investment with a fair value of approximately HK$3.2 million on )
T ] (2023: be increased/decreased by HK$1,000
the reclassification date. Accordingly, a loss of HK$2,683,632 had been .
. ) . 11.4% to and HK$26,000 (2023: HK$Nil and
recognized in profit or loss. )
23.0%) HK$321,000), respectively
ThZ Mg B 2 R 11.40% 78 EFt 7 FEE0.01 (20234 : 0.01) #%9
%33.0% BN SEEEIM,FA,0008 T K
(20234 : 26,00077T (20234 © TH7TRK321,000
[RRATES B7T)
23.0%)
Volatility 36.1% to  When volatility increases/decreases by
107.64% 0.01, the fair value will be increased/
decreased by HK$6,000 and
HK$12,000
EIES 361%E  HEIELF S TEOOERANEER

107.64% m,/ FiL6,00078 7T R 12,00058 7T
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AR E M BRI

31 March 2024 202443831 H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 31. £ THZAABRERAABHEEZHR

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

VELUELT]
technique

hES &

Unlisted equity Adjusted net
investments asset value
FEEMRALE REREE
FE

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums
and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would

Significant
unobservable input

EXFAHEZEANE

Risk-free Rate

ERE AR

N/A

take into account when pricing the investments.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2024

Equity investments designated

EEE AR EEF ARM

at fair value through other 2EWEZ BRAEE
comprehensive income
Investments in securities EHEE

170 Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

(& o

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEHBABRBZHRE

3.37% to  When risk-free rate increases/

3.63% decreases by 0.01, the fair value will
be increased/decreased by HK$Nil
and HK$6,000

337%E EEMFIELFA S TEOOFERANE

3.63% B, R Z BT R 6,000 7T

N/A  When adjusted net asset value
increases/decreases by 0.01 (2023:
0.01), no
impact to the result (2023: no impact
to the result)

TEA CHEEEEFELA S TH0.01 (2023
F:001) BFEERERTE (2023
F I AGEREATE)

RZHEREE I RIEAEREEH LS RS
ERREEERGEEBIEERITETE -

DRBESFR
TERETAERETRITAZ ARBESESR -

BRARBEFAEZEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M BRI

31 March 2024 202443831 H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 31. ERITHZAABHERAABHEZHE

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
As at 31 March 2023

(B
BRAABEAEZEE : (@)

7202353831 H °

Fair value measurement using
RABERKAUTEESE

Equity investments designated
at fair value through other

BRERANBESAEM
EEWEZ RERE

20243831 H ®

Fair value measurement using

[AREBEERAUTHIEGE

= 23,813,445 54,375,259 78,188,704

501,344,779 80,174,057 - 581,518,836

501,344,779 103,987,502 54,375,259 659,707,540

comprehensive income - 87,397,789 32,578,280 119,976,069

Debt investments at fair value BARBEFABEZ
through profit or loss BERERE - - 5,876,221 5,876,221
Investments in securities EHERE 626,288,097 26,951,307 - 653,239,404
626,288,097 114,349,096 38,454,501 779,091,694

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets (2023: Nil). The
movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income or profit or loss:

At 1 April
Transfer from Level 2 during the year
Transfer to Level 2 during the year

Total losses recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

Total losses recognised in other
comprehensive income

At 31 March

FRMEMEEMS > F—REF _HBI
FEHEBANBEE (2023F | &) c F=MAZ
ARBESEESWT :

2024
HK$

BANEESFARMEEmUE

HHEZTHMEE :
RuB1H
FREBHE R
FREBABE MR

38,454,501 45,998,791
48,876,823 135,144,726
(2,516,254) -

RiREIEmREN 2 B iRMEE

(2,683,632) (3,589,500)

P E At E U bEEY 2 RS 1R AR AR

W3A3H

(27,756,179) (139,099,516)

54,375,259 38,454,501
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31.

32.

172

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2024

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2023
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2023.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2023: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) Financial risk factors
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise investments
in securities, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Hong Kong, which management believes are of
high credit quality. The Group has policies in place to evaluate credit
risk when accepting new business and to limit its credit exposure to
individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 March. For listed debt investments, the Group also monitors them
by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.
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32.

EMITAZAREBERAABESSR
(#8)

BAREBENEZEE | (&)
BAREESEZEE

F82024 3531 H

AEBMP20245E3 831 B \AERMLAAEE
EZEMEME -

FR20233531 H
AEEMN2023FE38 31 B EEAIZRA D BES
BrEHEE -

FER- EREEms > F—REF-_HRZBIL
EEBEAABESE > TEEARBEE =R
(20234 : #®) ©

MBEREEBEREE

(a) MBEBREZR
FEBZIESMTABERESKE - BA
AEESFARMEERTZZ RAKE - B2
ABESABRGZZEFREURFEREE
FEEH ZEEMIBZIEANERE
ERZEERMHES -

FrERTMIAEEZTERRAGEER
B RERR ABESARMREEER -
EEREEAHEEERBERBRR 2K
5o BN o

EERR
FEBEMARERASEEREIFEHNE
EERREEERRFZEBIEZSRIE
1% o AEEBRIEEER - MEHE AT ES
Rz EEERKRRHEMMAZREEGZER
ZEERRE °

REREERFR DGR DIE
TRETEANRAEREENRZEEERR
EeEEAR (ZERBAPESE » &
FEEtE R BARMN HIB 2 A S R P
15) » UKRH3A3NHZERDIER D © Ft
EHEHBREMS @ AEBETERINBEE
SPARETTERIE - FTETIMMATMEEZ IR
E#RE -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR TSR AR MY EE

31 March 2024 202443831 H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2024

12-month
ECLs
12{8 A 845
=HH

Stage 1

Trade receivables* PR >
Deferred rental receivables? RIEEWE S 4,243,654
Financial assets included in SIABANRIE 2R

prepayments, deposits HittEWmIEZ

and other receivables* SREE 20,990,425

Amounts due from fellow ERR A KB ABIE

subsidiaries

- Not yet past due — BB 991,869
Cash and cash equivalents RE&RREEEER

- Not yet past due — W AREH 1,233,480,151

(a) MBEBEEER (&)

EERRE (&)

32. HBRAKREERBEREER (@)

RERRREFDELRSE (B)

71202453831 H

Lifetime ECLs
2HIFEMEEER

Simplified
Stage 3 approach
PEER= i{biE

- 52,710,948

14,660,785

52,710,948
4,243,654

35,651,210

991,869

1,233,480,151

1,259,706,099

14,660,785 52,710,948

1,327,077,832
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR a MR AR ME iR TSR AR MY EE

31 March 2024 202453831 H 31 March 2024 20249 3H31H
32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 32. MRS EERZEREE (&) 32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 32. MR EEREREE (&)
(continued) (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BAFERAMEZE (&) (a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) MBEBEE (&)
Credit risk (continued) EERR (&) Equity price risk (B R g
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEEARRERF RS (18) Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities B R s I A58 55 A B E F A8 RE B &
decrease as a result of changes in the value of underlying individual FZEEZHMEE AR - 112024F38
As at 31 March 2023 #2023F3H31H e securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from 31H AEEEHZRERKKREDEANE
~ individual equity investments classified as equity investments ERAMBESAEMEZERG ZRALE
12-month designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (note Z AR AR E (HizE16) o
ECLs 16) as at 31 March 2024.
1284 Lifetime ECLs
EHIESER 2 HTEHRE SR The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change TRETHRREPRAEBREERARZ
D in the fair values of the equity investments to which the Group has BAKERNABESES10% (FTEEME
Simplified significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with all other EREFEAEE R AEARBEEN) 28
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach variables held constant and before any impact on tax. For the purpose RE o BUb DTS > AR ERGEAER
REE = LS B of this analysis, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve. NEEFEERR

HK$ HK$ HK$
BT

Carrying

amount of Change in
Trade receivables* PR - - - 31,321,571 31,321,571 investments equity*
Deferred rental receivables EIEEW A S 6,525,764 - - - 6,525,764 RERAEE R e
Financial assets included in STATRMRRIE s BERK 18,488,476 8,497,518 - - 26,985,994
prepayments, deposits HittEKHIEZ AT AT
and other receivables* SREE
Amounts due from fellow [ GEN YNGR N
subsidiaries As at 31 March 2024 202438311
) o ) Dokin
 Not yet past due ki 201,442 ) B ) 201,442 Unlisted equity investments: FLEHRAKSE :
_ iy i i i e A H
Cash and cash equivalents e RESEEER Equity investments designated at fair value ?Em}ﬁéﬁgﬁ_ﬁrk,\ﬂﬂéﬁ
through other comprehensive income Wz RAIRE 78,188,704 7,818,870
- Not yet past due — E R 326,394,805 - - - 326,394,805
As at 31 March 2023 #2023E3831H
351610487 8,497,518 - 81321571 391429576 Unlisted equity investments: JELEHIRAKE
- Equity investments designated at fair value —EERAANBESAEMEE
&3 For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * MAERFRBECREEZZEWRERMS B . . 2L 1=
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 18 to the BEBEEAE2ERNES MBI RM 18I throth other comprehenswe income H&mZHyZ’S&ﬁ 119.976.069 11.997.607
consolidated financial statements. o
o Excluding accumulated losses * TEIEREE
# The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “normal” when they are # SMEEZEEEEZTE KB BUEESHE
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a TERMBEE S8R B P B ARE N
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality BHEs TEE - REESHEEZEEEEHKR
of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. 2 TEEE o
Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from BREAEBEREWERZEEREZFE > 1B
trade receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial IR S EATSERRMIET 189K EE o
statements.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

176

(continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current
obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding
through operating cash flows and advances from the immediate
holding company.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

Repayable on

demand/less

than 1 year

RERMEE
—FUF

32. BEAKEEEEREE @

(a) MBERBEREER (&)

MEE LA
MEEEARIEAEEAREEBERRZEH
BEHZER BEZADESAREECE
BREERTRBRERERAR ZBMME
RBRARERAIMBHAES -

FEFEZBREENEEZBRRERZ RS
EERR BRERENHRSHERE - LURE
HEHARARHESTFR °

FEBRRREPRBIRGHORTENRZE
REEISERNT

[ ]

1to 2years Over 2 years

—EmE MEALE

- - 321,409,611

102,640,377 9,031,857 397,687,471

26,446,374 20,588,796 113,688,803
= - 254,303,568
6,550,500 2,830,800 11,747,520

- 1,263,000,000 1,263,000,000
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 32. MEEISETEHERKE @)

(continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Repayable on

demand/less

(a)

MBREKREER (@)
nBELER (8)

Trade payables FEFTRRRR 321,409,611
Financial liabilities included in st AEMMEMFIER 286,015,237

other payables and accruals EstERZ SrREE
Rental and other deposits HEREMES 66,653,633

Amount due to the immediate  ETEZZERABTIE
holding company 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,366,220
Interest-bearing borrowing SHEEE -
930,748,269

Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

135,637,251 1,295,451,453 2,361,836,973

than 1 year
REREE 1to2years  Qver 2 years
—FENTF —EMmFE MEL
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Trade payables FE{TERER 72,459,276 - - 72,459,276
Financial liabilities included in st AEAIFETTIAR
other payables and accruals [EstERZz ¢mEE 192,436,064 - - 192,436,064
Rental and other deposits HERkEMEE 57,925,054 26,211,606 19,836,811 103,973,471
Amount due to the immediate  EfEFERABIE
holding company 254,303,568 - - 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HESE 1,279,666 - - 1,279,666
578,403,628 26,211,606 19,836,811 624,452,045
Currency risk &R R

The Group's functional currency is HK$. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through investments in securities that are
denominated in another currency, being primarily United States
dollars ("USD"). As the HK$ is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between the HK$ and the
USD to be insignificant.

(b) Capital management
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically and
manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31 March
2024 and 2023, the Group was in a net cash position.

33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 April 2024, 1,621,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$1
each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company of
the Company in consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of
HK$1,621,000,000 into the Company.

FEBZEERSEBIT - AEEAEZ
ERERTIEREUAMEE (EERET
(ME7m)) sHEZESRE - ARNBTEET
#i > AEESR B ITRRTZ B ERE
E)E N

(b) BEXEIE
FEBEABEZ TZERDRELERRF
BIREZ T M ARRERE R BE
TR BB RA G » WERFRIBEZ EARE
1% LURDERRA - £ EAEEZH
12 BUREE 7 I ST ) o

NEBMZEABIERRERZFASD o B
BREERRTEANGEE > TENERAER
RSB AN o AERMN2024F 2202343
A31BYHERREFENRIT o

33. REEHAEEIR

R2024F 48188 > ARBEMHEBERZER QG E
1T ACE%1,621,000,000 RS EE 1 BT EiE
B tEABAAEEALEET 621,000,000 7TH
R1E
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e EERRMIEE e BRI
31 March 2024 202453831 H 31 March 2024 202443831 H

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 34. ZATIMIER AR 34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 34. ZRAT IR RAR (@)

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AATM SRR BEIEZ EROT ¢ (Gt

2024
2024 HK$
HK$ T
BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEMERTESHAE 5,864,669,775 3,753,667,403
i N i
Property, plant and equipment L ER - E Yk 5,250,272,836  3,225,323,252 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES T ——
Right-of-use assets ERERE e 1.190.514 Interest-bearing borrowings STEMEE 1,263,000,000 -
i IEIEfE & D y 929, -
Deferred rental receivables AR = LR 6,525,764 Development maintenance fund LHREEBESD 370,232,570 371,802,919
. o LR /NS0 %
Investment in a subsidiary B ATRE 1 1 Other payables A A 9,031,857 B
i NEN : s - -
Prepayments and deposits FANRIERZE 758,292 432,671 Lease liabilities mEaE 5,958,950 -
_ B 2 U
Total non-current assets ERBEELRE 5,263,971,736 3,233,472,202 Total non-current liabilities e 1,648,223,377 371802919
CURRENT ASSETS RINAE Net assets BEFE 4,216,446,398 3,381,864,484
Inventories =8 466,319 376,004
Trade receivables FEUSBRTR 44,636,496 27,999,345
, , . ) EQUITY W
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEMIE ~ s REMEWEIE 29,957,635 25,029,441
o Share capital A 1,998,000,002 984,000,002
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries e EN )= VNCIE /S 991,869 201,442
S . Reserves (Note) e (MsE) 2,218,446,396  2,397,864,482
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUF B A B 78 180,658,403 171,844,623
Investments in securities EERE 581,518,836 653,239,404
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RESZEES 1,233,395,367 326,309,761 Total equity ERAREE 4,216,446,398 3,381,864,484
Total current assets MENE EMERE 2,071,624,925 1,205,000,020
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
CHAN Sai-ming CHEUNG Wing-han
Trade payables FE(T AR TR 321,409,611 72,459,276
R PRAMER SRAL
Other payables and accruals HihpERIB A ESE A 778,562,627 252,788,838
Director Director
Rental and other deposits A& REMEE 113,688,803 103,973,471 o o
Amount due to the immediate holding company RS EZEZERABRIE 254,303,568 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HEaRA 2,962,277 1,279,666
Total current liabilities BB E4EEE 1,470,926,886 684,804,819
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 600,698,039 520,195,201
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 34. xATMBIRER @)

(continued)
Note: PEE -

Movements of the Company's reserves are as follows: KABEEZEBHNT ¢

Capital reserve Accumulated losses

B 40

HK$ HK$

BT AT
At 1 April 2022 720224818 5,386,040,004 (2.753,483,983) 2,632,556,021
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FENEEREEEEELE - (242,095,027) (242,095,027)

Transfer from development maintenance

fund to capital reserve HEREEESERTEAKE 7,403,488 - 7,403,488
At 31 March 2023 and at 1 April 2023 72202353831 B K R2023F 48 1H 5,393,443,492 (2,995,579,010) 2,397,864,482
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FABIEREHERIEEEE - (180,988,435) (180,988,435)
Transfer from development maintenance HEREEESHEEELHE

fund to capital reserve 1,570,349 - 1,570,349
At 31 March 2024 7202438318 5,395,013,841 (3,176,567,445) 2,218,446,396

35. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35. & /#iZ 8 MIEHRER

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for AR RN2024F9B 25 AEEE R IR EL
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2024. SFRIEE o
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